
Document last changed: 2/11/2009 3:51 PM 

 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda  

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

 
 Date: Monday, February 16, 2009 Time: 7:00 PM 

 
  

Work Sessions 
6:00 Discussion on Service Districts   
FY 2008 Audit Report   
 
Regular Agenda 
7:00 p.m. Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Item 1 Approval of Agenda 

Item 2 Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 3 State Office of Emergency Medical Service to present Model 
System   

Item 4 Consideration  Boy Scout Lease Agreement 

Item 5 Consideration of Resolution  to General Assembly requesting 
various local acts 

Item 6 Appointment of Commissioner to Farmland Preservation 
Agricultural Advisory Board   

Item 7 Appointment of Commissioner to Northeastern Workforce 
Investment Consortium   

Item 8 Appointment of Commissioner to Recreation Advisory Board   

Item 9 Appointments   to Recreation Advisory Board 

Item 10 Consent Agenda: 
1. Ordinance to authorize amending code of ordinances for billing 

of annual inspection of provisional septic tanks 

1



Document last changed: 2/11/2009 3:51 PM 

 
2. Approval of NC Marriage Amendment Resolution 
3. Letter requesting amendment to testing for Volatile Organic 

Compounds 
4. Letter of Support opposing bailout legislation for the OTCs 
5. Approval of February 2, 2009, Minutes 
6. Approval of Sheriff's Office Records Retention and Disposition 

Schedule 
7. Budget Amendments 
8. Crowder Change Order #2 - Mainland Water Construction 
9. Change order #1 - McKenzie Construction Co., Moyock Library 
10. Planning Department Job Descriptions 
11. Fire & EMS Peer Review/Quality Management bylaws and 

personnel approval 

Item 11 Commissioner’s Report 

Item 12 County Manager’s Report 

Item 13 Closed Session: 
1. According to GS 143-318.11(6)to discuss personnel 

Adjourn 

Special Meeting 

Tourism Development Authority 

Call to Order 

Budget Amendment 

Discussion of Additional Tourism Funding 

Discussion on Moyock Welcome Center Sign up-grade 

Adjourn 

 

 

2



Filename: Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda 2009-02-16 19-
00.doc 

Directory: C:\DOCUME~1\gkeene\LOCALS~1\Temp\ama9E.tmp 
Template:

 C:\DOCUME~1\gkeene\LOCALS~1\Temp\ama9C.tmp\Bo
ard of Commissioners Meeting Agenda Template.dot 

Title: Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda 2009-02-16 19-
00 

Subject:  
Author:   
Keywords:  
Comments: Prepared with Laserfiche Agenda Manager. 

 
Creation Date: 2/11/2009 3:50:00 PM 
Change Number: 2 
Last Saved On: 2/11/2009 3:51:00 PM 
Last Saved By:   
Total Editing Time: 1 Minute 
Last Printed On: 2/11/2009 3:51:00 PM 
As of Last Complete Printing 
 Number of Pages: 2 
 Number of Words: 283 (approx.) 
 Number of Characters: 1,616 (approx.) 

 

3



1 

 

NORTH CAROLINA 

CURRITUCK COUNTY 

 

LICENSE AGREEMENT 

 THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT made and entered into this _____ day of 

_____________, 2009, by and between Currituck County North Carolina, a body corporate and 

politic existing pursuant to the laws of the State of North Carolina, (the “Licensor”), and 

Tidewater Council No. 596, Boy Scouts of America with principal offices in Virginia Beach, 

Virginia, (the “Licensee”). 

WITNESSETH: 

 That the County of Currituck in consideration of the license fee in the amount of One and 

No/100 Dollars ($1.00) payable in advance hereby grants a non-exclusive license to let the 

Licensee use, beginning April 1, 2009 and ending March 31, 2011, the property described in 

Exhibit A attached to this license agreement and incorporated hereinafter by reference, (the 

“Premises”), for recreational and incidental purposes. 

 THIS AGREEMENT is granted subject to the following conditions: 

 1.   The Premises may be used for the following: park and or recreational purposes only 

with no others: camping, hiking and training in connection with programs of Boy Scouts of 

America. Other similar youth activities by other groups or organizations may be permitted by 

4



2 

 

Licensor.  The Currituck County Director of Public Works shall resolve any scheduling or use 

conflicts. 

 2.  Any development and/or maintenance the Licensee elects to do to the premises must 

be done in accordance with a Development and Maintenance Program to be mutually agreed 

upon in writing by both parties.  All structures shall be constructed and landscaping 

accomplished in accordance with plans approved by the Currituck Board of Commissioners or its 

designated Agent.   Title to improvements constructed or erected by the Licensee shall remain 

vested in Licensee subject however to the provisions of condition 8 hereof and shall be 

maintained by Licensee in a condition satisfactory to Licensor 

 3.  Licensee shall cut no timber, conduct no mining operations, remove no sand, gravel or 

kindred substances from the ground, commit no waste to any kind, nor in any manner 

substantially change the contour or condition of the Premises except as may be authorized under 

and pursuant to condition 2 of this License Agreement.  Licensee may salvage such fallen or 

dead timber as may be required for use as firewood. 

 4.  Licensee shall not discharge waste, effluent, or gaseous or vapor emissions from the 

Premises in such a manner that would violate Federal, State or local regulations pertaining to 

water and/or air pollution control. 

 5.   The Licensor shall not be responsible for damages to property or injuries to persons 

which may arise from or be incident to the exercise of the privileges granted by this License 

5



3 

 

Agreement or for damages to the property of the Licensee or for damages to the property or 

injuries to the person of the Licensee’s officers, agents, servants, employees, members, or others 

who may be on the premises at Licensee’s  invitation or the invitation of anyone of them arising 

from or incident to any of Licensor’s governmental activities on the Premises and the Licensee 

shall hold Licensor harmless from any and all such claims except for the sole negligence of 

Licensor or its agents. 

 6.  This License Agreement may be relinquished by the Licensee at any time by giving 

the Licensor at least 30 days notice in writing. 

 7.  This License Agreement may be revoked by Licensor in the event the Licensee 

violates any of the terms and conditions of this agreement and continues and persists therein for a 

period of 30 days after notice thereof in writing by the Licensor or in the event the Licensor 

determines the Premises are required by Licensor for another use. 

 8.  On or before the date of expiration of this License Agreement or its termination by the 

Licensor, the Licensee shall vacate the premises, remove its property and restore the Premises to 

a condition satisfactory to the Licensor.  If, however, the License Agreement is revoked, 

Licensee shall vacate the Premises, remove its property, and restore the Premises to a condition 

satisfactory to the Licensor within such time as the Licensor shall designate.   In either event, if 

Licensee shall fail or neglect to remove its property and restore the Premises to a condition 

satisfactory to Licensor, then at the option of the Licensor the Licensee’s property shall either 

become the property of Licensor without compensation or Licensor may cause it to be removed 

and the Premises restored to a condition satisfactory to Licensor. 

6



4 

 

 9.  All notices to be given pursuant to this License Agreement shall be addressed if to the 

Licensee, to Tidewater Council, No. 596, Boy Scouts of America, 1032 Heatherwood 

Drive, Virginia Beach VA, 23455 6675; if to Licensor, to County of Currituck, P.O. Box 39, 

Currituck NC 27929. 

 10.  This License Agreement is personal and non assignable by the Licensee. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Licensor and Licensee have executed this License Agreement 

in duplicate originals, one of which is retained by each of the parties, the day and year first above 

written. 

       COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 

ATTEST:      BY:________________________________ 
        J. Owen Etheridge, Chairman 
_________________________    Board of Commissioners 
Clerk to the Board         

        
 (COUNTY SEAL) 

       TIDEWATER COUNCIL NO. 596 
       BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA 
        
       BY:________________________________ 
        Executive Director, 
        Tidewater Council, Inc. 

7



Filename: lease agreement.doc 
Directory: C:\DOCUME~1\gkeene\LOCALS~1\Temp 
Template: C:\Documents and Settings\gkeene\Application 

Data\Microsoft\Templates\Normal.dot 
Title: NORTH CAROLINA 
Subject:  
Author: Ike McRee 
Keywords:  
Comments:  
Creation Date: 2/11/2009 2:57:00 PM 
Change Number: 2 
Last Saved On: 2/11/2009 2:57:00 PM 
Last Saved By:   
Total Editing Time: 1 Minute 
Last Printed On: 2/11/2009 3:52:00 PM 
As of Last Complete Printing 
 Number of Pages: 4 
 Number of Words: 813 (approx.) 
 Number of Characters: 4,640 (approx.) 

 

8



I

t

WsIz

1
i

t

G
R

Goo
5

OR
6

G

o

0Pw
zaPW1

PW
3

PW
2

PW
1

bnw0iqNfZ

Pw
13

E

1CK

a2p0OO

LANT
PW
17

hVhtia

3VcAIRPORTEXPANSION
cE

INDlI3TRY37t
AC

EXPANSIONAREA

PMW

P
RO

8
S

E

5

ACTIVE
CELL

LA1W
6L

WATER
SHED

PROTECTION
AREA

Pw
to

1

RETAIN
RUN
OFF
TO

INCREASE
ONSITE
RECHARGE

2

CLOSE
OUT

LANDFlLL

3

ADOPT
MASTER

PLAN

PROVDE
COUNTY

WATER
PROVIDE

WATER

CONSERVATION
FIXTURES
NO

INDUSTRIAL
PROCESSING

LlNDFILLTRANSFERSTATlON
fll

COll111Y
FACIIJ77Ff

73t
AC

1

k
NON

PROFIT

SREp

1

RGAMIl170NA

J1

LMW
3

y

1

qy
v

I

cailrna

v

i

7

r

J

11r

n

rte

u1w
1

y

i

OPlV
4PACfsANI1

3

RFGREATION
a

N

6
2705
w

h

LMW
2

1168
V1

r

PMW
E

l

APPROX
WETLANDSDELINEATION

PW11

Pw
1z

ry

1

I

PW
13

ic

M

PW
14

y

J

PW
16iti

ti

1

i

3

Agreement
Between

Currituck
County

and

Tidewater
Council
BSA

PREMISES
IN

YELLOW

POr113LS
WSLLS

i

COOROIIIATES

ELSYrlO381

H
O

1

0

F

G

sxisri3ae

it

N

1

N

7

9



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR CURRITUCK COUNTY, 
NORTH CAROLINA ESTABLISHING LEGISLATIVE AGENDA AND REQUEST FOR 

THE INTRODUCTION OF VARIOUS LOCAL ACTS BY THE COUNTY’S 
LEGISLATIVE DELEGATION 

 

  WHEREAS, the North Carolina General Assembly convened its 2009-2010 Session on 
January 28, 2009; and   

 WHEREAS, Board of Commissioners for the County of Currituck desires that its 
legislative delegation introduce and support the adoption of various local acts beneficial to the 
citizens of Currituck County.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners for the 
County of Currituck, North Carolina that: 

 Section 1.  The County of Currituck requests that Representative Bill Owens and Senator 
Marc Basnight introduce and support the following legislation: 

A.  Regulation and Use of Golf Carts on Public Streets   

Legislation to authorize the county to, by ordinance, regulate the operation of golf 
carts on any public street or road within the county and the authority to, by ordinance, 
require the registration of golf carts, charge a fee for the registration, specify the 
persons authorized to operate golf carts, and specify the required equipment, load 
limits, hours and methods of operation and golf carts and types of streets upon which 
golf carts may be operated. 

B.  Use of Electronic Means to Provide Public Notice for Certain Public Hearings 

 Legislation to authorize the county, by ordinance, to provide notice of public 
hearings through electronic means including, but not limited to, the county website 
but that such ordinance may not supersede requirements for mailed notice, the posting 
of sings on property or the required time frame for public notices. 

C.  Expand Membership of the Currituck Game Commission 

Legislation to increase membership of the Currituck Game Commission from five to 
seven members with one member chosen from each of the five county commissioner 
residency districts and two members appointed to serve at large. 

 

 

10



D.  Expand Membership of the Board of Adjustment 

Legislation to increase membership of the Currituck County Board of Adjustment 
from five regular members to seven regular members with one regular member 
chosen from each of the five county commissioner residency districts and two regular 
members appointed to serve at large. 

E.  Transfer of Development Rights 

   Legislation to allow the county to implement transfer of development rights. 

F.  Restrict Outlying Landing Field 

     Legislation to restrict the location of military outlying landing fields in the vicinity of                                                                                  
 educational facilities. 

 Section 2.  The County Manager, County Attorney and Clerk to the Board of 
Commissioners are directed to forward a copy of this resolution to Representative Bill Owens 
and Senator Marc Basnight with supporting documentation.  

 Section 3.  This resolution shall be effective upon its adoption. 

 ADOPTED the 16th day of February, 2009. 

 

        ______________________________ 
        J. Owen Etheridge, Chair 
        Board of Commissioners 
ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
Clerk to the Board 
 

11



Filename: legislative .doc 
Directory: C:\DOCUME~1\gkeene\LOCALS~1\Temp 
Template: C:\Documents and Settings\gkeene\Application 

Data\Microsoft\Templates\Normal.dot 
Title: RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR 

CURRITUCK COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA ESTABLISHING LEGISLATIVE AGENDA AND 
REQUEST FOR THE INTRODUCTION OF VARIOUS LOCAL ACTS BY THE COUNTY’S 
LEGISLATIVE DELEGATION 

Subject:  
Author: Sharon McRee 
Keywords:  
Comments:  
Creation Date: 2/11/2009 2:58:00 PM 
Change Number: 2 
Last Saved On: 2/11/2009 2:58:00 PM 
Last Saved By:   
Total Editing Time: 0 Minutes 
Last Printed On: 2/11/2009 3:52:00 PM 
As of Last Complete Printing 
 Number of Pages: 2 
 Number of Words: 470 (approx.) 
 Number of Characters: 2,679 (approx.) 

 

12



NORTHEASTERN REGION WORKFORCE EYElOPMENT

Sacud2UafonceSaiccticlns

Serving Camden Chowan Currituck Dare Gates Hyde Pasquotank Perquimans Tyrrell and Washington Counties

January 30 2009

Mr Dan Scanlon
Currituck County Manager
PO Box 39

Currituck NC 27929

RE Workforce Investment Consortium Replacementfor Currituck County

Dear Mr Scanlon

The purpose ofthis correspondence is to inform you that Currituck County is in need of a

representative to the Northeastern Workforce Investment Consortium

Please send your letter of appointment to

Wendy Jewett
Northeastern Workforce Development
Albemarle Commission
PO Box 646

Hertford NC 27944

Should

Si

Wendy
Norther

BOARD CHAIR
MARCY BERGMAN

ve any questions regarding this matter please do not hesitate to contact me

Workforce Development

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
KENNY KEE
ALTHEA RIDDICK
COLLEEN TURNER
CHRISTINE MCKENZIE
STEVE BRYAN
CAROL RICKETTS

tSNH6P iTfilMlp BIi
aa6llTlBflB6FYC@b

BOARD CHAIR DIRECTOR
WENDY JEWETT

512 SOUTH CHURCH STREE7
POST OFFICE BOX 646
HERTFORD NC 27944

PHONE 2524265753
FAx2524268482

WEB ADDRESS WWWnWdbOTO
AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER

13



RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

Donna McCloud District 1 Donna McCloud Vance Aydlett February 2009 January 2010

Don Humphries District 2 Horace Bell John Rorer February 2009 January 2010

Denise Fallon District 3 Denise Fallon Barry Nelms February 2009 January 2010

Sam Casey District 4 Sam Casey Owen Etheridge February 2009 January 2010

Laurie Peters District 5 Laurie Peters Janet Taylor February 2009 January 2010

Ernest Hughes At-Large Gene Gregory January 2010

Renee Grimett At-Large Paul O'Neal January 2010

14



RESOLUTION 
HB 1130 

 
Whereas, the General Assembly of the State of North 
Carolina passed in Chapter 577 (House Bill 1130) 1996 
Session Laws, giving authority for the County to collect 
any fees for the annual inspection of provisional septic 
tanks that had not been voluntarily paid by the property 
owner in the same manner by which taxes are collected. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, Currituck County, by this 
ordinance does authorize and direct that delinquent fees 
for the annual inspection of provisional septic tanks or 
other innovative septic systems approved by the Albemarle 
Regional Health Department on a provisional basis may be 
billed as property taxes and that said delinquent fees can 
be collected on the bill that includes the fee.  This fee 
will become a lien against said property. 
 
ADOPTED this the 16th day of February, 2009. 
 
ATTEST:        
      ___________________ 
__________________   J. Owen Etheridge 
Gwen H. Keene, CMC   Chairman 
Clerk to the Board 

  

15



Filename: septic tank inspections.doc 
Directory: C:\DOCUME~1\gkeene\LOCALS~1\Temp 
Template: C:\Documents and Settings\gkeene\Application 

Data\Microsoft\Templates\Normal.dot 
Title: RESOLUTION 
Subject:  
Author:   
Keywords:  
Comments:  
Creation Date: 2/5/2009 2:42:00 PM 
Change Number: 1 
Last Saved On: 2/5/2009 2:49:00 PM 
Last Saved By:   
Total Editing Time: 7 Minutes 
Last Printed On: 2/11/2009 3:51:00 PM 
As of Last Complete Printing 
 Number of Pages: 1 
 Number of Words: 145 (approx.) 
 Number of Characters: 832 (approx.) 

 

16



   

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

                                    
 
 

DANIEL F. SCANLON II, CPA 
J. Owen Etheridge, Chairman County Manager’s Office County Manager 

S. Paul O’Neal, Vice-Chairman Post Office Box 39 DONALD I. McREE, JR. 
O. Vance Aydlett, Jr. Currituck, North Carolina 27929-0039 County Attorney 

Gene A. Gregory 
 

Telephone (252) 232-2075 / Fax (252) 232-3551 GWEN H. KEENE, CMC 
Barry C. Nelms State Courier # 10-69-17 Clerk to the Board 
John D. Rorer   
Janet L. Taylor   

 

    

February 16, 2009 
 
 
 

Currituck County Legislative Delegation 
Senator Marc Basnight 
Representative Bill Owens 
Raleigh, NC   
 
Gentlemen: 
 
In the 2007-2008 Legislative Session action was taken that requires testing of all newly 
constructed private drinking water wells for Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC’s).  The 
Currituck County Board of Commissioners understands water is a resource that needs to be 
protected; however, we feel this requirement needs review and further action. 
 
Requiring all constructed wells to be tested for VOC’s is costly and not a good use of local or 
state government resources.  In North Carolina implementation of the new testing requirements 
could cost approximately $3.6 million annually (based on the estimated number of private 
drinking water wells constructed in 2004 (approximately 15,650 wells) and the potential cost of 
adding the VOC testing parameters (approximately $230 per water sample collected).  These 
costs are borne by the local health departments/counties and along with the cost of the permit 
are passed along to the consumer/taxpayer.  We are not advocating discontinuing testing all 
private drinking water wells for VOC’s, but to test only when appropriate circumstances indicate 
a risk of their presence. 
 
We appreciate your consideration and support of this matter and request amendment of current 
legislation (GS 87-97(h), Drinking Water Testing) to reflect the following: Testing for Volatile 
Organic Compounds (VOC’s) is required only when indicated and that it is the responsibility of 
the local Health Department to ensure appropriate testing is conducted. 
 
     Sincerely, 
 
 
 
     J. Owen Etheridge 
     Chairman 
 
Cc: NCACC 
 Jerry Parks, Regional Health Department 
 

17



   

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

                                    
 
 

DANIEL F. SCANLON II, CPA 
J. Owen Etheridge, Chairman County Manager’s Office County Manager 

S. Paul O’Neal, Vice-Chairman Post Office Box 39 DONALD I. McREE, JR. 
O. Vance Aydlett, Jr. Currituck, North Carolina 27929-0039 County Attorney 

Gene A. Gregory 
 

Telephone (252) 232-2075 / Fax (252) 232-3551 GWEN H. KEENE, CMC 
Barry C. Nelms State Courier # 10-69-17 Clerk to the Board 
John D. Rorer   
Janet L. Taylor   

 

    

 
 

 
 
 

 
       
 

18



 
 
 

19



Filename: water testing legislation.doc 
Directory: C:\DOCUME~1\gkeene\LOCALS~1\Temp 
Template: C:\Documents and Settings\gkeene\Application 

Data\Microsoft\Templates\Normal.dot 
Title: COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
Subject:  
Author: County of Currituck 
Keywords:  
Comments:  
Creation Date: 2/4/2009 11:08:00 AM 
Change Number: 2 
Last Saved On: 2/4/2009 11:08:00 AM 
Last Saved By:   
Total Editing Time: 0 Minutes 
Last Printed On: 2/11/2009 3:51:00 PM 
As of Last Complete Printing 
 Number of Pages: 3 
 Number of Words: 259 (approx.) 
 Number of Characters: 1,480 (approx.) 

 

20



 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

 

February 4, 2009 

 

TO:  Southern Shores, Duck, Kitty Hawk, Kill Devil Hills, Nags Head, and Manteo 

FROM: Katie Smith, Clerk 

RE:   OTC Request for Tax Exemption 

 

Please find enclosed a letter approved by the Dare County Board of Commissioners at their meeting on 
February 2, 2009, regarding online travel company’s (OTCs) request for exemption from state and local 
hotel occupancy taxes. This letter was addressed to Senators Hagan and Burr, Congress Representatives 
for NC, the Governor, Lieutenant Governor, Senator Basnight, and Representative Spear.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PO Box 1000, Manteo, NC 

Land of Beginnings 

COUNTY OF DARE 

21



 

 

 

February 3, 2009 

The Honorable Richard Burr 
217 Russell Senate Office Building 
Washington, DC 20510 

Dear Senator Burr: 

We want to express our concern over efforts of online travel companies (“OTCs”) to ask 
for exemption from state and local hotel occupancy taxes (“bed taxes”) by the passage of a 
“National Standard Relating to Interstate Travel Booking Services” which we anticipate will 
come as an amendment to a larger bill very soon.  Given the state of our economy and our local 
and state government fiscal conditions, it is inexplicable why Congress would ever consider such 
an effort. 

These companies have collected bed taxes from customers in our city but refused to fully 
remit the taxes to our government, costing us millions of dollars in unpaid taxes.   

The effect of passing their proposal would grant the OTCs retroactive and prospective 
immunity from existing lawsuits and assessments across the country for payment of these 
delinquent taxes, including a claim by our government pending now in court. 

If Congress believes there is an issue to be addressed, it should be handled with 
transparency: in the regular order, including hearings, testimony, and debate. 

We oppose the passage of any bailout legislation for the OTCs or any other proposal that 
would immunize these companies from remitting the same bed taxes that they are collecting. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
Warren Judge, Chairman 
Dare County Board of Commissioners 

22



Filename: otc letter.docx 
Directory: C:\DOCUME~1\gkeene\LOCALS~1\Temp 
Template: C:\Documents and Settings\gkeene\Application 

Data\Microsoft\Templates\Normal.dot 
Title:  
Subject:  
Author:   
Keywords:  
Comments:  
Creation Date: 2/5/2009 8:56:00 AM 
Change Number: 2 
Last Saved On: 2/5/2009 8:56:00 AM 
Last Saved By:   
Total Editing Time: 0 Minutes 
Last Printed On: 2/11/2009 3:52:00 PM 
As of Last Complete Printing 
 Number of Pages: 2 
 Number of Words: 332 (approx.) 
 Number of Characters: 1,898 (approx.) 

 

23



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
February 2, 2009 
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 p.m. for its 
regularly scheduled meeting at the Historic Courthouse in 
the Commissioners Meeting Room with the following members 
present:  Chairman Etheridge, Commissioners O’Neal, 
Aydlett, Nelms, Rorer, Gregory and Taylor. 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 
The Reverend David Blackman, Mt. Zion/Hebron Methodist 
Church was present to give the invocation. 
 
Girl Scout Troop 2428 gave the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Approval of Agenda 

Commissioner O’Neal moved to approve the agenda by amending 
to continue Item 9, PB09-03 Wild Horse Adventure Tours.  
Commissioner Aydlett seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
Item 2 Public Comment 

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 3 Presentation of "The Order of the Long Leaf Pine" to Ernie Bowden   

Item 4 Resolution Commending Mike Hoff, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service   

Item 5 Presentation of Fiscal year 2008 Audit Report   

Item 6 Presentation by Healthy Carolinians of the Albemarle  2008 State 
of the County Report by Amy Underhill and Ann Roach 

Item 7 Presentation by the Whalehead Preservation Trust   

Item 8 Public Hearing and Action  PB 88-66 Villages at Ocean Hill, Phase 
6C: Variance request regarding access for lots 267, 268, and 269.  
Located in Corolla, PINS 114E-000-WELL-0003 and 114E-000-098B-
0000, Poplar Branch Township. 

Item 9 Public Hearing and Action  PB 09-03 Wild Horse Adventure Tours:  
Request for a Special Use Permit for outdoor recreation. The 
property is located at 600 Currituck Club Drive, Corolla, Tax Map 
126, Parcel 3D, Poplar Branch Township. 

Item 10 Resolution amending a resolution  declaring its intention to 
consider the permanent closing a portion of Shark Lane, Shad Lane 
and Rock Lane 

Item 11 Appointment to Senior Citizens Advisory Board   

Item 12 Appointments to Planning Board   

Item 13 Appointment to Stormwater Advisory Board   

24



February 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   2 

Item 14 Appointment to Airport Advisory Board   

Item 15 Appointments to Recreation Advisory Board   

Item 16 Appointments to Economic Development Board   

Item 17 Appointments to Tourism Advisory Board   

Item 18 Reappoint Members of Farmland Preservation Agricultural Advisory 
Board   

Item 19 Consent Agenda: 
1. Budget Amendments 
2. Corolla Volunteer Fire Department - Request to substitute 

approved Capital Outlay 
3. Charge to Tax Collector Levy on Motor Vehicles for October 

Renewals 
4. Approval of January 5, 2009, Minutes 
5. Resolution Opposing Insurance Rate Increase 
6. Resolution Supporting Repairs to Long Lane, Knotts Island 
7. Petition to NCDOT for Road Addition of Herman's Court, Moyock 

Item 20 Commissioner’s Report 

Item 21 County Manager’s Report 

Adjourn 

Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on 
the regular agenda, please limit comments to 3 
minutes. 

Chairman Etheridge opened the public comment period. 

Elton Finnerty, Wedgewood Lakes, expressed his concerns 
with drugs in his neighborhood and the lack of service from 
the Sheriff’s department. 

Denise Hall, Moyock, expressed her concerns with a paid 
fire department and the increase in her tax. 

There being no further comments, Chairman Etheridge closed 
the public comment period. 

Presentation of "The Order of the Long Leaf Pine" to Ernie 
Bowden  

Sheila Tyler, Clerk of Superior Court, presented to Ernie 
Bowden the Order of the Long Leaf Pine, the highest 
civilian honor that can be granted in North Carolina. This 
is among the most prestigious awards presented by the 
Governor and is presented to individuals who have a proven 
record of extraordinary service to the State.  Mr. Bowden 
was a Currituck County Commissioner for 24 years.  

25



February 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   3 

Resolution Commending Mike Hoff, U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service   

Chairman Etheridge presented the following resolution to 
Mike Hoff, Manager of US Fish and Wildlife Service. 

 
Resolution 

Commending Mike Hoff, Manager 
US Fish and Wildlife Service 

 
WHEREAS, Currituck County received immediate response, 
assistance and accommodation from US Fish and Wildlife 
Service Manager Mike Hoff; and 
 
WHEREAS, there was an unfortunate incident at the Knotts 
Island Volunteer Fire Station which caused the County to 
immediately relocate personnel due to safety of the 
structure; and 
 
WHEREAS, Currituck County entered a non-binding agreement 
for temporary occupancy of a vacant residence on refuge 
property at no cost to the county; and 
 
WHEREAS, this enabled prompt and efficient relocation of 
Fire-EMS, supplies, equipment and personnel; and 
 
WHEREAS, this move was made possible with the continued 
partnership and collaboration of the Knotts Island 
Volunteer Fire Department and the US Fish and Wildlife 
Service. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Currituck County Board 
of Commissioners would like to thank Mr. Mike Hoff and the 
US Fish and Wildlife Service for their assistance and 
continued support of Currituck County. 

Presentation of Fiscal year 2008 Audit Report  

Chris Burton, CPA, Auditor, and Sandra Hill, Finance 
Director, presented the 2008 audit report. 

Commissioner O’Neal requested a resolution from area 
agencies that the county appropriates funding present their 
audits to the County Managers.  Commissioner Aydlett 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried.  

Presentation by Healthy Carolinians of the Albemarle  2008 
State of the County Report by Amy Underhill and Ann Roach 

26



February 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   4 

Amy Underhill, Albemarle Regional Health, presented the 
State of the County.  The mission is to be a community-
based network of agencies and citizens dedicated to 
improving the quality of life through health and wellness. 

Presentation by the Whalehead Preservation Trust  

Edna Baden, Director, made a presentation to the Board on 
the progress and accomplishments over the past 16 years 
that have taken place at the Whalehead Club. 

Public Hearing and Action  PB 88-66 Villages at Ocean Hill, 
Phase 6C: Variance request regarding access for lots 267, 
268, and 269.  Located in Corolla, PINS 114E-000-WELL-0003 
and 114E-000-098B-0000, Poplar Branch Township. 

Sworn testimony was given prior to making comments. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 
 
Midatlantic Builders, LLC has requested a variance from the 
Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) to establish a legal 
access to a proposed three lot subdivision located 
off Windance Lane in the Villages at Ocean Hill 
subdivision. The three lot subdivision, referred to as 
Phase 6C, initially received sketch plan approval in 1994. 
Subsequently the county drilled a new well adjacent to the 
proposed subdivision that was approximately 10.25 feet 
south of the original location indicated on the 1994 sketch 
plan. The shifting of the well site effectively pinched the 
required right-of-way width of 30 feet, resulting in a 
substandard access width for the proposed subdivision. To 
rectify the situation, the applicant has proposed two 
variance options: 
 
Option A  
Grant a variance to allow direct access to lots 267 and 268 
via a shared driveway from NC12. This would leave lot 269 
with driveway access from Windance Lane. The UDO has 
historically limited access to major arterials such as NC 
12. Most of the subdivisions that have developed on the 
Outer Banks, known as Planned Unit from Developments 
(PUD’s), have required that access be taken interior 
streets to avoid increasing the number of curb cuts to NC 
12, thereby increasing the general operational safety of 
the roadway. The UDO also provides that double frontage 
lots must provide a non-access easement on the most 
traveled roadway, which would be NC12 in this case. The 
Option A request seeks a variance from the above mentioned 

27



February 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   5 

access restrictions to NC12. The applicant has already 
received approval from NCDOT for a shared driveway 
to serve lots 267 and 286. Please see the applicant’s 
attached request for their reasoning for approval of this 
variance. 
 
Option B  
Grant a variance to allow access to lots 267, 268 and 269 
from an 18.3 foot wide easement at its narrowest point. The 
UDO requires that lots have frontage on a public or private 
right-of-way. While each proposed lot has frontage on NC 12 
or Windance Lane, the access prohibition to NC12 prevents a 
driveway for lots 267 and 268 to be taken from said right-
of-way. This means these two lots would not be able to take 
access from the right-of-way they front onto. Due to the 
available lot width of only 18.3 feet adjacent to the well 
site, the applicant is not able to bring the required 30 
foot right-of-way off Windance Lane. The Option B request 
seeks a variance from the above mentioned access provisions 
to allow a three lot subdivision to take access from a 18.3 
foot wide easement at its narrowest point (rather than from 
a 30 foot right-of-way). The Fire Marshal has stated that 
per the North Carolina Fire Prevention Code access to a 
subdivision of three or more lots should be a minimum of 20 
feet in width. Considering there is only 18.3 feet of width 
available at the narrowest point, it appears the granting 
of this variance may be in conflict with the general 
requirements of the North Carolina Fire Prevention Code. 
Please see the applicant’s attached request for their 
reasoning for approval of this variance. 
 
Variance Requirements  
In order to approve a variance request for a planned unit 
development, the Board of Commissioners must make the 
following findings. Additionally, in granting a variance 
the Board of Commissioners may attach additional conditions 
or requirements that will, in its judgment, secure the 
objective of the standards or requirements so varied or 
modified. The proposed variance: 
 

1. Will not endanger the public health or safety; 
 
2. Will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting 

property; 
 
3. Will be in harmony with the area in which it is 

located; 
 

28



February 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   6 

4. Will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan, 
Thoroughfare Plan, or other plan officially adopted 
by the board; and, 

 
5. Will not exceed the county's ability to provide 

adequate public facilities, including, but not 
limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law 
enforcement, and other county facilities. Applicable 
state standards and guidelines shall be followed for 
determining when public facilities are adequate. Such 
facilities must be in place or programmed to be in 
place within two years after the initial approval of 
the sketch plan. 

 

Chairman Etheridge opened the public hearing. 

Mark Bissell, Engineer, stated that joint access for lots 
would be on the interior streets, not on NC 12. 

Jim Bickford, supports access. 

Dan Hunt, VOH, thanked the County and developer for working 
out the access issue. 

There being no further comments, Chairman Etheridge closed 
the public hearing. 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to grant variance, Plan B with 
findings of fact.  Commissioner O’Neal seconded the motion.  
Motion carried 

Public Hearing and Action  PB 09-03 Wild Horse Adventure 
Tours:  Request for a Special Use Permit for outdoor 
recreation. The property is located at 600 Currituck Club 
Drive, Corolla, Tax Map 126, Parcel 3D, Poplar Branch 
Township. 

Continued 

Resolution amending a resolution  declaring its intention 
to consider the permanent closing a portion of Shark Lane, 
Shad Lane and Rock Lane 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to approve.  Commissioner O’Neal 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
 
CURRITUCK COUNTY 
 

29



February 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   7 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR THE COUNTY 
OF CURRITUCK AMENDING A RESOLUTION DECLARING ITS INTENTION 
TO CONSIDER THE PERMANENT CLOSING OF A PORTION OF ROCK 
LANE IN FRUITVILLE TOWNSHIP 

 WHEREAS, a preliminary resolution declaring the intent of the Currituck County 

Board of Commissioners to close a portion of Rock Lane in Fruitville Township, more 

fully described below, was adopted at a regular meeting of the Currituck County Board of 

Commissioners on August 4, 2008 and a public hearing on the question was called for 

7:00 P.M. on September 2, 2008 in the Historic Currituck Courthouse for the purpose of 

hearing objections to the closing of a portion of said street; and 

 WHEREAS, notice of such public hearing has been published once a week for 

three successive weeks in a newspaper published and having a general circulation in 

Currituck County, North Carolina and a notice of the closing and the public hearing has 

been prominently posted in at least two places along the portion of Rock Lane proposed 

for closure and abandonment; and 

 WHEREAS, the public hearing has been conducted at 7:00 P.M. on September 2, 

2008 in the Historic Currituck Courthouse, and said public hearing was conducted for the 

purpose of hearing objections to the closing of the said portion of Rock Lane in Fruitville 

Township, at which time all parties and persons interested were given an opportunity to 

be heard; and 

 WHEREAS, the Currituck County Board of Commissioners, after considering all 

matters has determined that the closing of the hereinafter described portion of Rock Lane 

in Fruitville Township would not be detrimental to the public interest or to any individual 

property rights and further the Currituck County Board of Commissioners is satisfied that 

closing the hereinafter described portion of Rock Lane is not contrary to the public 

interest and no individual owning property in the vicinity of said portion of Rock Lane to 

be closed or in the subdivision in which it is located would thereby be deprived of 

reasonable means of ingress and egress to their property; 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Currituck County Board of 

Commissioners that: 

30



February 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   8 

 Section 1.  The Currituck County Board of Commissioners hereby declares the 

hereinafter described portion of Rock Lane located in Fruitville Township, Currituck 

County, North Carolina to be permanently closed and abandoned, and that the right, title 

and interest in the hereinafter 

described portion of Rock Lane be vested in the owners of the parcel of land adjoining 

said portion of Rock Lane which is hereby closed and abandoned, said portion of Rock 

Lane, which is hereby declared closed and abandoned being more particularly described 

as follows: 

 
Rock Lane 

 
Being a certain tract of land lying and situated in Fruitville Township, Currituck County, 
North Carolina and being further described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a point situated at the northwest corner of Carova Beach Business Area, 
Lot A, Section 2, Carova Beach Subdivision recorded in Deed Book 115, Page 453 and 
Map Book 2, Page 125 of the Currituck Public Registry ad also being located in the 
southwest corner of the intersection of Sandfiddler Road, a 60 foot right-of-way, and 
Rock Lane where Rock Lane becomes a 40 foot right-of-way; thence from the point of 
beginning North 01º45’00” West 20.00 feet to a point, cornering; thence North 88º15’00” 
East approximately 536.95 feet to a point, the Mean High Water Line of the Atlantic 
Ocean as observed on February 14, 2008; thence running with the Mean High Water Line 
of the Atlantic Ocean South 00º43’42” East approximately 20.01 feet to a point located in 
the southern right-of-way line of Rock Lane, said point also being on the northern 
boundary line of Carova Beach Business Area, Lot A, Section 2, Carova Beach 
Subdivision recorded in Deed Book 115, Page 453 and Map Book 2, Page 125 of the 
Currituck Public Registry; thence from the Mean High Water Line of the Atlantic Ocean 
and running with the southern right-of-way line of Rock Lane and the aforementioned 
Carova Beach Business Area, Lot A, Section 2, Carova Beach Subdivision South 
88º15’00” West approximately 536.24 feet to a point located at the intersection of the 
southern right-of-way line of Rock Lane and the eastern right-of-way of Sandfiddler 
Road said point being the point and place of beginning. 

 
 
 Section 2.  This resolution shall be effective on the date and at the time a 

final plat for that subdivision application dated August 21, 2008 entitled in part 

“Carova Beach Business Block, Section 2, Proposed Open Space Subdivision” is 

filed for record in the Currituck County Registry and on that date and at that time 

31



February 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   9 

the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners shall record a certified copy of this 

resolution in the Currituck County Registry. 

 Section 3.  This resolution supersedes and replaces the resolution 

pertaining to Rock Lane adopted on September 2, 2008. 

 
NORTH CAROLINA 
 
CURRITUCK COUNTY 
  

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR THE COUNTY 
OF CURRITUCK AMENDING A RESOLUTION DECLARING ITS INTENTION 

TO CONSIDER THE PERMANENT CLOSING OF A PORTION OF SHARK 
LANE IN FRUITVILLE TOWNSHIP 

 WHEREAS, a preliminary resolution declaring the intent of the Currituck County 

Board of Commissioners to close a portion of Shark Lane in Fruitville Township, more 

fully described below, was adopted at a regular meeting of the Currituck County Board of 

Commissioners on August 4, 2008 and a public hearing on the question was called for 

7:00 P.M. on September 2, 2008 in the Historic Currituck Courthouse for the purpose of 

hearing objections to the closing of a portion of said street; and 

 WHEREAS, notice of such public hearing has been published once a week for 

three successive weeks in a newspaper published and having a general circulation in 

Currituck County, North Carolina and a notice of the closing and the public hearing has 

been prominently posted in at least two places along the portion of Shark Lane proposed 

for closure and abandonment; and 

 WHEREAS, the public hearing has been conducted at 7:00 P.M. on September 2, 

2008 in the Historic Currituck Courthouse, and said public hearing was conducted for the 

purpose of hearing objections to the closing of the said portion of Shark Lane in Fruitville 

Township, at which time all parties and persons interested were given an opportunity to 

be heard; and 

 WHEREAS, the Currituck County Board of Commissioners, after considering all 

matters has determined that the closing of the hereinafter described portion of Shark Lane 

32



February 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   10 

in Fruitville Township would not be detrimental to the public interest or to any individual 

property rights and further the Currituck County Board of Commissioners is satisfied that 

closing the hereinafter described portion of Shark Lane is not contrary to the public 

interest and no individual owning property in the vicinity of said portion of Shark Lane to 

be closed or in the subdivision in which it is located would thereby be deprived of 

reasonable means of ingress and egress to their property. 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Currituck County Board of 

Commissioners that: 

 Section 1.  The Currituck County Board of Commissioners hereby declares the 

hereinafter described portion of Shark Lane located in Fruitville Township, Currituck 

County, North Carolina to be permanently closed and abandoned, and that the right, title 

and interest in the hereinafter described portion of Shark Lane be vested in the owner of 

the parcel of land adjoining said portion 

of Shark Lane which is hereby closed and abandoned, said portion of Shark Lane, which 

is hereby declared closed and abandoned being more particularly described as follows: 

 
Shark Lane 

 
Being a certain tract of land lying and situated in Fruitville Township, Currituck County, 
North Carolina and being further described as follows: 

 
BEGINNING at a set iron rod situated in the northwest corner of Business Area A, 
Section 5, Carova Beach Subdivision recorded in Deed Book 353, Page 652 and Map 
Book 2, Page 139 of the Currituck County Registry, said point also being located in the 
eastern right-of-way of Sandfiddler Road, thence from the point of beginning North 01º 
45’00” West 10.00 feet to a point, cornering; thence North 88º15’00” East approximately 
639.62 feet to a point, the Mean High Water Line of the Atlantic Ocean as observed on 
February 14, 2008, cornering; thence running with the aforementioned Mean High Water 
Line South 01º49’58” East 10.00 feet to a point situated in the northern line of Business 
Area A, Section 5, Carova Beach Subdivision recorded in Deed Book 353, Page 652 and 
Map Book 2, Page 139 of the Currituck County Registry, cornering; thence leaving the 
Mean High Water Line of the Atlantic Ocean South 88º15’00” West approximately 
639.65 feet to a set iron rod located in the eastern right-of-way of Sandfiddler Road, the 
place and point of beginning containing 6,396 square feet more or less. 
 

33



February 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   11 

Said parcel of land being the southern 10’ feet of the 20’ public pedestrian beach 
access extending from the east right of way line of Sandfiddler Road to the Mean 
High Water Line of the Atlantic Ocean.  

  

Section 2.  This resolution shall be effective on the date and at the time a final plat for 

that subdivision application dated August 21, 2008 entitled in part “Carova Beach Business 

Block, Section 5, Proposed Open Space Subdivision” is filed for record in the Currituck County 

Registry and on that date and at that time the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners shall record a 

certified copy of this resolution in the Currituck County Registry. 

Section 3.  This resolution supersedes and replaces the resolution pertaining to Shark 

Lane and adopted on September 2, 2008. 

   

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR THE COUNTY 
OF CURRITUCK AMENDING A RESOLUTION DECLARING ITS INTENTION 

TO CONSIDER THE PERMANENT CLOSING OF A PORTION OF SHAD 
LANE IN FRUITVILLE TOWNSHIP 

 WHEREAS, a preliminary resolution declaring the intent of the Currituck County 

Board of Commissioners to close a portion of Shad Lane in Fruitville Township, more 

fully described below, was adopted at a regular meeting of the Currituck County Board of 

Commissioners on August 4, 2008 and a public hearing on the question was called for 

7:00 P.M. on September 2, 2008 in the Historic Currituck Courthouse for the purpose of 

hearing objections to the closing of a portion of said street; and 

 WHEREAS, notice of such public hearing has been published once a week for 

three successive weeks in a newspaper published and having a general circulation in 

Currituck County, North Carolina and a notice of the closing and the public hearing has 

been prominently posted in at least two places along the portion of Shad Lane proposed 

for closure and abandonment; and 

 WHEREAS, the public hearing has been conducted at 7:00 P.M. on September 2, 

2008 in the Historic Currituck Courthouse, and said public hearing was conducted for the 

purpose of hearing objections to the closing of the said portion of Shad Lane in Fruitville 

34



February 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   12 

Township, at which time all parties and persons interested were given an opportunity to 

be heard; and 

 WHEREAS, the Currituck County Board of Commissioners, after considering all 

matters has determined that the closing of the hereinafter described portion of Shad Lane 

in Fruitville Township would not be detrimental to the public interest or to any individual 

property rights and further the Currituck County Board of Commissioners is satisfied that 

closing the hereinafter described portion of Shad Lane is not contrary to the public 

interest and no individual owning property in the vicinity of said portion of Shad Lane to 

be closed or in the subdivision in which it is located would thereby be deprived of 

reasonable means of ingress and egress to their property; 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Currituck County Board of 

Commissioners that: 

 Section 1.  The Currituck County Board of Commissioners hereby declares the 

hereinafter described portion of Shad Lane located in Fruitville Township, Currituck 

County, North Carolina to be permanently closed and abandoned, and that the right, title 

and interest in the hereinafter described portion of Shad Lane be vested in the owners of 

the land adjoining said portion of Shad Lane which is hereby closed and abandoned, said 

portion of Shad Lane, which is hereby declared closed and abandoned being more 

particularly described as follows: 

 
 Shad Lane 

 
Being a certain tract of land lying and situated in Fruitville Township, Currituck County, 
North Carolina and being further described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a point situated on the southwest boundary of Business Area A, Section 
5, Carova  Beach Subdivision recorded in Deed Book 115, Page 453 and Map Book 2, 
Page 125 of the Currituck Public Registry and also being situated on the northeast corner 
of the intersection of Sandfiddler Road, a 60’ public right-of-way and Shad Lane, a 60’ 
public right-of-way; thence from the point of beginning along the eastern right-of-way 
line of Sandfiddler Road South 01º45’00” East approximately 70.00 feet to a point, 
cornering; thence North 88º15’00” East approximately 531.51 feet to a point, the Mean 
High Water Line of the Atlantic Ocean as observed on February 14, 2008; thence running 
with the Mean High Water Line of the Atlantic Ocean North 01º45’00” West 30.00 feet 

35



February 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   13 

to a point situated on the northern right of way line of the aforementioned Shad Lane, 
said point also being on the southern boundary of Business Area A, Section 5, Carova  
Beach Subdivision recorded in Deed Book 115, Page 453 and Map Book 2, Page 125 of 
the Currituck Public Registry; thence leaving the High Water Line of the Atlantic Ocean 
and running along the northern right-of-way line of the aforementioned Shad Lane and 
the southern line of the aforementioned Business Area A, Section 5, Carova Beach 
Subdivision South 88º15’00” West approximately 491.51 feet to a point; thence North 
43º15’00” East 56.57 feet to a point, the point and place of beginning. 
 
Said parcel of land being a portion of Shad Lane, a 60’ public right of way including the 
intersection triangle with Sandfiddler Road extending from the east right of way of 
Sandfiddler Road to the Mean High Water Line of the Atlantic Ocean. 
 
 Section 2.  This resolution shall be effective on the date and at the time a 

final plat for that subdivision application dated August 21, 2008 entitled in part 

“Carova Beach Business Block, Section 2, Proposed Open Space Subdivision” is 

filed for record in the Currituck County Registry and on that date and at that time 

the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners shall record a certified copy of this 

resolution in the Currituck County Registry. 

 Section 3.  This resolution supersedes and replaces the resolution 

pertaining to Shad Lane and adopted on September 2, 2008. 

Appointment to Senior Citizens Advisory Board   

Commissioner O’Neal moved to appoint Peggy Stewart.  
Commissioner Taylor seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Appointments to Planning Board  

Commissioner Nelms nominated Bren Robbins. Commissioner 
Gregory nominated Fannie Newbern.  Commissioner O’Neal 
seconded the nominations.  They were appointed by 
acclamation.  

Appointment to Stormwater Advisory Board  

Commissioner Aydlett moved to appoint Mike Cherry to fill 
unexpired term of Don Cheek.  Commissioner O’Neal seconded 
the motion.  Motion carried.  

Appointment to Airport Advisory Board   

36



February 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   14 

Commissioner Rorer moved to appoint John Snowden.  
Commissioner Aydlett seconded the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioner Gregory and Nelms voting no. 

Commissioner O’Neal moved to appoint Marion Gilbert.  
Commissioner Aydlett seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Commissioner Taylor moved to appoint Denise Hall.  
Commissioner Gregory seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Appointments to Recreation Advisory Board   

Commissioner Aydlett nominated Donna McCloud.  Commissioner 
Rorer nominated Horace Bell.  Commissioner Nelms nominated 
Denise Fallon.  Chairman Etheridge nominated Sam Casey.  
Commissioner Taylor nominated Laurie Peters. Commissioner 
Aydlett seconded these nominations.  They were appointed by 
acclamation. 

Appointments to Economic Development Board   

Commissioner Rorer nominated David Palmer.  Chairman 
Etheridge nominated Greg Wirth.  Commissioner Taylor 
seconded the nominations.  Motion was approved with 
Commissioner Nelms voting no. 

Appointments to Tourism Advisory Board   

Commissioner Aydlett moved to appoint Katrina Rainey to 
replace Don Austin.  Commissioner Rorer seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 

Reappoint Members of Farmland Preservation Agricultural 
Advisory Board   

Commissioner Nelms moved to reappoint Martin Jarvis, Sidney 
Garrett, Jerry Wright, Wade Morgan, and Harvey Roberts.  
Commissioner O’Neal seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Consent Agenda: 
1. Budget Amendments 
2. Corolla Volunteer Fire Department - Request to 

substitute approved Capital Outlay 
3. Charge to Tax Collector Levy on Motor Vehicles 

for October Renewals 
4. Approval of January 5, 2009, Minutes 
5. Resolution Opposing Insurance Rate Increase 
6. Resolution Supporting Repairs to Long Lane, 

Knotts Island 
7. Petition to NCDOT for Road Addition of Herman's 

Court, Moyock 
37



February 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   15 

 
Commissioner Aydlett moved to approve.  Commissioner 
Gregory seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

60808-533601  System Supplies   $                    4,000    
60808-545001  Contracted Services     $                  4,000  
       
     $               4,000.00    $             4,000.00  
       
Explanation: 
 

Ocean Sands Water & Sewer District (60808) - Transfer funds due to increased 
costs of supplies. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Ocean Sands Water and Sewer District Fund (60) - No change. 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

10640-526000  Advertising   $                       271    
10640-532004  Supplies - Home Economics  $                    4,200    
10640-532000  Supplies     $                     271  
10330-449900  Miscellaneous Grants     $                  4,200  
       
     $                    4,471    $                  4,471  
       
Explanation: 
 

Cooperative Extension (10640) - To transfer funds for advertising and to record 
SHIIP grant from NC Dept of Insurance. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
10510-590000  Capital Outlay   $                    4,000    
10510-532000  Supplies     $                  4,000  
     $                    4,000    $                  4,000  
       
Explanation: Sheriff (10510) - To transfer funds to purchase shotguns for new officers. 
Net Budget Operating Fund (10) - No change. 

38



February 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   16 

Effect: 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
50790-596100  Professional Services   $                  24,481    
50790-588000  Contingency     $                24,481  
     $                  24,481    $                24,481  
       
Explanation: 
 

Moyock Library (50640) - To transfer funds to adjust The Design Collaborative 
professional services after library construction contracts were approved. 

Net Budget 
Effect: County Governmental Construction Fund (50) - No change. 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       

10430-514801  
Fees Paid to Precinct 
Officials  $                    5,662    

10430-521000  Rent   $                       166    
10430-532100  Ballot programs & Imprint     $                  1,314  
10430-545000  Contract Services     $                  4,514  
     $                    5,828    $                  5,828  
       
Explanation: 
 
 

Elections (10430) - To transfer funds cover costs of the November election.  
Contract services includes maintenance on election equipment that will be 
covered by the State. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating fund (10) - No change. 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
10760-585000  DSS Donations   $                    2,473    
10380-487000  DSS Donations     $                  2,473  
       
     $                    2,473    $                  2,473  
       
Explanation: 
 

Social Services County Assistance (10760) - To increase appropriations to record 
additional donations collected for Social Services. 

Net Budget Operating fund (10) - Increased by $2,473. 

39



February 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   17 

Effect: 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
10760-532900  Foster Care Supplement   $                  18,000    
10330-430200  Adoption Assistance     $                18,000  
       
     $                  18,000    $                18,000  
       
Explanation: 
 

County Assistance (760) - Adjust line item to reflect additional Special Child 
Adoption funds received from the state. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $18,000. 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       

10490-545003  
Contract Services - Ct 
Facilities  $                    2,510    

10330-424000  Officer Fees     $                  2,510  
       
     $                    2,510    $                  2,510  
       
Explanation: 
 

Court Facility Fees (10490) - To increase appropriations due to increases in 
maintenance contract costs to maintain the Judicial Building for this fiscal year. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $2,510. 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
       
10750-557700  Crisis Intervention   $                  17,316    
10390-499900  Fund Approriated Balance   $                    2,686    
10330-431000  DSS Administration - Rev.     $                20,002  
       
     $                  20,002    $                20,002  
       

40



February 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   18 

Explanation: 
 

Social Services Administration (750) - To adjust budgeted line items to State 
Funding Authorizations dated 1/14/2009. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $17,316. 
 

Resolution  
Opposing Rate Increase 

Requested by Insurance Companies 
 

WHEREAS, Currituck County, as well as other counties in Coastal North Carolina, is 
experiencing the hard economic times that are now gripping our nation; and 
 
WHEREAS, insurance coverage is required in order to purchase a home or business and 
is vital to the recovery of our home construction industry and our economy; and 
 
WHEREAS, any increase in the cost of insurance makes it more difficult for middle and 
low income families to purchase homes, start businesses and participate in and fuel our 
economic recovery; and 
 
WHEREAS, given these difficult economic times and the severe negative impact an 
increase in the cost of insurance will have on our citizens and our economic recovery, and 
given the low claims history of Currituck County, the insurance industry’s request for a 
rate increase should be denied. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Currituck County Board of 
Commissioners opposes the rate increase requested by the insurance industry for its 
customers in Currituck County and requests that the North Carolina Insurance 
Commission deny the insurance industry’s request. 
 
 

RESOLUTION REQUESTING  
SECONDARY ROAD IMPROVEMENT FUNDING 

 
WHEREAS, Long Lane, Knotts Island, is in need of repairs to 
bring the road to minimum NCDOT standards; and 
 
WHEREAS the total estimated cost for the repairs is 
$30,000; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Currituck County Board 
of Commissioners supports spending Secondary Road 
Improvement funds in the amount of $30,000 for Long Lane, 
Knotts Island. 

Commissioner’s Report 

Commissioner Taylor clarified that she was not asking for a 
tax increase for Fire and EMS. 

41



February 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   19 

Commissioner Aydlett commented that he did not appoint 
himself to the Whalehead Board. 

Commissioner O’Neal requested a letter for audits from 
agencies to which the county provides funding. 

Chairman Etheridge thanked staff for support during board 
retreat. 

County Manager’s Report 

Mr. Scanlon stated that the OLF meeting had been 
rescheduled for February 28. 

Adjourn 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned 

 
 

42



Filename: February 2 Minutes.doc 
Directory: C:\DOCUME~1\gkeene\LOCALS~1\Temp 
Template: C:\Documents and Settings\gkeene\Application 

Data\Microsoft\Templates\Normal.dot 
Title: CURRITUCK COUNTY 
Subject:  
Author:   
Keywords:  
Comments:  
Creation Date: 2/4/2009 12:55:00 PM 
Change Number: 29 
Last Saved On: 2/5/2009 3:56:00 PM 
Last Saved By: Mary Gilbert 
Total Editing Time: 300 Minutes 
Last Printed On: 2/11/2009 3:52:00 PM 
As of Last Complete Printing 
 Number of Pages: 19 
 Number of Words: 5,372 (approx.) 
 Number of Characters: 30,625 (approx.) 

 

43



CClU1TYSHERIFFSCFFICE
Records Retencian

and Disposean Schedule

11c rccrdretenuriaitdtYiciticasrItiecYule end retention jaeritltrrarcratin tht rctcrcls series
liwttrlIareiri arc hcxcYaarttit1nacccrtlararc ith ncerrticttffhaptr121 rnd1ircif tla4
txal tatrates raftirrhCarsina it is afreec that thr rccorcls o nrat anYcgill nMthaafurther utic
car 1ue for affuitlYusncxreearth car reference urYesafrrr therctltitc retcnticnperids
pccifecl Yticrin tn3art autlcirixcYtc Eye cirtrroeci crcthcric cYitipctsttY at 1 thetcncv car
cytficiaY hactt ctNStoiraf tictn vttYtrrut further refcrcnce tK car aprarY cat cithcr part tca this
artcrnetat It is furter arced that these tticcittils may tart fie estxtcY jttarr to the tinacgercxls
statccthrvwseras stiafficient reason the natvwR lac retained fcarloncr periods LYwsthcYulc is try
rr4nratn to fYectYucttn e17c chite tyf arrrialravel it is rrwicrcsrrsttalare

7nFRUiVAIRECQhfMENDED

r tihtaif

AAPtOEU

Clairratlkf C3nttntnrrrxsi4icancr

y

Iaut3 irncriFirtrsr
iiieiartapt f lisrxarisi11rettrrcc

1eFrarrmcoyt erpl

crrarr
13UCrI4447UricX

ttiexrrtaaril1tfi3

C cwnt N znac

44



Number 2009054

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10530-502100 Salaries - Overtime 30,000$                      
10530-503500 Salaries - Temporary Services 70,000$                      
10530-511000 Telephone & Postage 3,000$                        
10530-532000 Supplies 2,500$                        
10530-553000 Dues & Subscriptions 500$                           
10530-502000 Salaries - Regular 100,000$                  
10530-554400 Volunteer Assistance 3,000$                      
10530-545000 Contract Services 3,000$                      

10541-531000 Gas, Oil, Tires 1,500$                        
10541-553000 Dues & Subscriptions 1,000$                      
10541-536000 Uniforms 500$                         

107,500$                    107,500$                  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 16th day of February 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

Emergency Medical Services (10530); Fire Services (10541) - To transfer salary funds to 
overtime and temporary services due to position vacancies and operating transfers due to 
increased costs.

45



Number 2009055

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense
62828-516000 Maintenance and Repair 2,500$                        
62828-561000 Professional Services 2,500$                      

2,500.00$                   2,500.00$                 

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 16th day of February 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: Newtown Road Sewer District (62) - No change.

Newtown Road Sewer (62828) - Three pumps have had to be replaced in the Newtown 
collection system this fiscal year.

46



Number 2009056

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

63838-545000 Contracted Services 3,000$                       
63380-481000 Investment Earnings 3,000$                     

3,000$                       3,000$                     

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 16th day of February 
2009, passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Solid Waste Fund (63) - Increased by $3,000.

Solid Waste (63838) - NCDENR Transfer Station Operating Permit Fee due for Transfer 
Station Operating Permit 5-year renewal.  

47



Number 2009057

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10510-516000 Maintenance & Repair 10,142$                     
10510-590000 Capital Outlay 12,711$                     
10380-484001 Insurance Recovery 22,853$                   

22,853$                     22,853$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 16th day of February 
2009, passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $22,853.

Sheriff (10510) - Increase budgeted line items for repairs and replacement for Sheriff 
vehicles that were damaged when involved in accidents this fiscal year.

48



Number 2009058

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10750-511000 Telephone & Postage 2,000$                       
10750-531000 Gas, Oil, Etc 4,200$                       
10750-532001 Building Supplies 1,000$                       
10750-561000 Professional Services-Outside Legal Fees 60,000$                     

10752-519000 Medicaid Transportation 5,000$                       
10752-519303 St/Co Special Assistance 10,000$                     
10752-519005 State Foster Care & Boarding 10,000$                     
10752-519002 Medicaid Assistance 5,000$                     
10752-519100 Title IV-E Foster Care 10,000$                   

10560-519701 HCCBG-Access Services 12,312$                     
10560-545000 Contracted Services 57,566$                     

10330-432000 Administrative Aid 3,504$                       
10330-430600 Elderly & Disabled Transportation 44,626$                   
10330-431200 IV-D Collections 1,069$                     
10330-431300 NC Health Choice 3,500$                     
10330-432200 HCCBG In Home 15,504$                   
10340-450500 Administrative & Filing Fees 36,500$                   
10390-499900 Fund Approriated Balance 49,383$                   

165,582$                   165,582$                 

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 16th day of February 2009, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $147,078.

Social Services Administration (750)  - Increased costs due to the higher volumn of clientele and out of town 
foster care placements. PUBLIC ASSISTANCE (752)  - Increase in the Medicaid caseload, eligibility of St/Co 
Special Assistance clientele and the foster care currently is primarily State Foster Home children. INTER-
COUNTY TRANSPORTATION (560) - Make adjustments to reflect the contracted amounts.

49



Number 2009059

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

50790-545000 Contract Services 23,421$                      
50790-588000 Contingency 23,421$                    

23,421$                      23,421$                    

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 16th day of February 2009, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Construction (50) - No change.

Moyock Library Construction (50790) - To transfer funds from contingency for change order 1 for McKenzie 
Construction Company.

50



Number 2009060

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

55818-593006 Dist System - Tulls Creek Booster Stn 37,257$                      
55818-588003 Contingency - Distribution System 37,257$                    

37,257$                      37,257$                    

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 16th day of February 2009, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Mainland Water Construction (55) - No change.

Mainland Water Construction (55818) - To transfer contingency funds for Dominion Power to install 
electrical service to the new Tulls Creek Booster Station.

51



Number 2009061

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

50640-570004 Reimburseable Expenses 15,861$                      
50640-561004 Professional Services 15,861$                    

15,861$                      15,861$                    

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 16th day of February 2009, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Construction (50) - No change.

Cooperative Extension Building (50640) - Transfer funds from professional services to purchase technology 
for Cooperative Extension building.

52



Number 2009062

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

50548-590000 Furnishings 267$                           
50548-588000 Contingency 267$                         

267$                           267$                         

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 16th day of February 2009, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Construction (50) - No change.

Knotts Island Fire Station (50548) - Transfer funds from contingency for furniture from Jess Crate Furniture 
Company.

53



Number 2009063

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10790 503000 Salaries--Part Time 4,451$                        
10790 545000 Contracted Services 4,451$                      

4,451$                        4,451$                      

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 16th day of February 2009, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

Library (10790) - Transfer funds from Part-time salaries to contracted services for a cleaning contract for the 
Barco Library until June 30, 2009.

54



Number 2009064

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10550-503000 Salaries-Part Time 27,168$                      
10550-502000 Salaries-Regular 27,168$                    

27,168$                      27,168$                    

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 16th day of February 2009, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

Airport (10550) - To transfer funds to reclassify personnel at the airport from one full-time and one part-time 
airport linemen to three part-time airport linemen.  

55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



CURRITUCK COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 JOB TITLE: PLANNER I 
 PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
 
 
 GENERAL STATEMENT OF JOB 
 
Under general supervision, performs planning and research work in the county planning  
department. Work involves review of development plans, subdivision plans, and applications to 
ensure compliance with applicable county regulations, ordinances and policies; administering 
FEMA regulations and assisting with CRS program; explaining and interpreting ordinances as 
necessary; working with the general public to answer development related questions. Work also 
involves  researching, compiling and analyzing data and preparing reports and cases for 
presentation to various Boards and other civic groups.  Reports to the Planning Director or their 
designee. 
 
 
 
 SPECIFIC DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS 
 
Assists in preparing various developmental plans and researching related factors. 
 
Reviews applications for building permits and site plans from developers and the general public 
to ensure compliance with county ordinances and adopted plans; distributes copies of 
development proposals to various governmental agencies for review and comment. 
  
Assists in review of applications for subdivisions; reviews for compliance with various 
regulations, ordinances and policies; interprets ordinances for contractors and the general public. 
 
Researches deed/tax records to ensure property is compliance with county codes to issue 
permits. 
 
Administers FEMA regulations including verifying flood certifications, identifying flood zones; 
educates public and staff on FEMA issues; interprets FEMA codes; assists with CRS program 
and monitors changes in FEMA regulations. 
 
 
Assists in the preparation of various studies and reports in conjunction with requests for zone 
changes, special use permits, text amendments and other special projects. 
 
Researches, writes and presents information to the Board of Adjustment for variances, 
conditional use permits and appeals. 
 
Assists surveyors, engineers and the public with planning and zoning related development 
issues. 
 
 
 
Conducts zoning and project inspections on site throughout the County. 
 
Performs file maintenance, orders supplies, types letters and reports. 
 

150



 PLANNER I 
 

 
(c) MAXIMUS, 2003 2 

ADDITIONAL JOB FUNCTIONS 
 
Performs duties as assigned by the County Manager or his designees during a State of 
Emergency or other disaster. 
 
Performs other related work as required. 
 
 
 
 MINIMUM TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE 
 
Bachelor’s Degree in planning, geography, or a related field, and one to two years of experience 
in rural or regional planning at the local government level; or any equivalent combination of 
training and experience which provides the required skills, knowledge and abilities. 
 
 
 
 MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS OR STANDARDS REQUIRED 
 TO PERFORM ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS 
 
Physical Requirements: Must be physically able to operate a variety of machinery and 
equipment including computers, calculators, copiers, etc. Must be able to exert up to 20 pounds 
of force occasionally, and/or up to 10 pounds of force frequently, and/or a negligible amount of 
force constantly to move objects.  Physical demand requirements are for those for Medium 
Work.   
 
Data Conception: Requires the ability to compare and/or judge the readily observable, 
functional, structural or compositional characteristics (whether similar or divergent from obvious 
standards) of data, people or things. 
 
Interpersonal Communication: Requires the ability of speaking and/or signaling people to 
convey or exchange information. Includes receiving instructions, assignments or directions from 
supervisor. 
 
Language Ability: Requires the ability to read a variety of reports, ordinances, maps, grant 
regulations, land use plan, invoices, correspondence, permits, etc. Requires the ability to prepare 
correspondence, reports, grant applications, etc., using prescribed formats and conforming to all 
rules of punctuation, grammar, diction, and style. Requires the ability to speak before groups of 
people with poise, voice control and confidence.  
 
Intelligence: Requires the ability to apply principles of logical or scientific thinking to define 
problems, collect data, establish facts, and draw valid conclusions; to interpret a variety of 
technical instructions in mathematical or diagrammatic form; and to deal with several abstract 
and concrete variables. 
 
Verbal Aptitude: Requires the ability to record and deliver information, to explain procedures, to 
follow oral and written instructions. Must be able to communicate effectively and efficiently in a 
variety of technical or professional languages including engineering, legal, and mapping 
terminology. 
 

151



 PLANNER I 
 

 
(c) MAXIMUS, 2003 3 

Numerical Aptitude: Requires the ability to utilize mathematical formulas; to add and subtract; 
multiply and divide; utilize decimals and percentages; understand and apply the theories of 
algebra, geometry, descriptive statistics. 
 
Form/Spatial Aptitude: Requires the ability to inspect items for proper length, width and shape. 
 
Motor Coordination: Requires the ability to coordinate hands and eyes rapidly and accurately in 
using office equipment. 
 
Manual Dexterity: Requires the ability to handle a variety of items such as office equipment. 
Must have minimal levels of eye/hand/foot coordination. 
 
Color Discrimination: Requires the ability to differentiate between colors and shades of color. 
 
Interpersonal Temperament: Requires the ability to deal with people beyond giving and 
receiving instructions. Must be adaptable to performing under stress and when confronted with 
persons acting under stress. 
 
Physical Communication: Requires the ability to talk and hear: (Talking: expressing or 
exchanging ideas by means of spoken words. Hearing: perceiving nature of sounds by ear.)  
Must be able to communicate via a telephone. 
 
 
 
 KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 
 
Considerable knowledge of the principles, practices and objectives of rural, urban, and regional 
planning.  
 
Considerable knowledge of governmental programs, laws, and services pertinent to the planning 
process.  
 
Considerable knowledge of the environmental and socio-economic implications of the planning 
process.  
 
General knowledge of the current literature, trends and developments in the field of urban and 
rural planning.  
 
Considerable knowledge of the geographical layout of the County and its socio-economic 
characteristics.  
 
Skilled in the collection, analysis and presentation of technical data and planning 
recommendations.  
 
Ability to use computer-aided mapping, drafting, word processing, spreadsheet and file 
maintenance programs. 
Ability to read and interpret maps, surveys, and engineering drawings and plans.  
 
Ability to review subdivision plans, site development plans and related drawings for compliance 
to applicable local regulations and ordinances. 
 
Ability to effectively express ideas orally and in writing.  

152



 PLANNER I 
 

 
(c) MAXIMUS, 2003 4 

 
Ability to exercise considerable tact and courtesy in frequent contacts with county, municipal, 
state and federal officials, and the general public. 
 
Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships as necessitated by work 
assignments. 
 

153



Filename: Planner I Job Description.doc 
Directory: C:\DOCUME~1\gkeene\LOCALS~1\Temp 
Template: C:\Documents and 

Settings\gkeene\Application 
Data\Microsoft\Templates\Normal.dot 

Title: CURRITUCK COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION 
Subject:  
Author: Currituck County 
Keywords:  
Comments:  
Creation Date: 2/6/2009 3:56:00 PM 
Change Number: 3 
Last Saved On: 2/11/2009 3:52:00 PM 
Last Saved By:   
Total Editing Time: 0 Minutes 
Last Printed On: 2/11/2009 3:52:00 PM 
As of Last Complete Printing 
 Number of Pages: 4 
 Number of Words: 1,063 (approx.) 
 Number of Characters: 6,062 (approx.) 

 

154



 CURRITUCK COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 JOB TITLE: PLANNER II 
 PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
 
 GENERAL STATEMENT OF JOB 
 
Under general supervision, performs technical, administrative and professional work in assisting 
and coordinating the activities of the county planning department to ensure the orderly growth 
and efficient administration of county resources.  Work involves review of development plans, 
subdivision plans, and applications to ensure compliance with applicable county regulations, 
ordinances and policies; administering the current planning process and coordinating Technical 
Review Committee meetings; preparing reports for presentation to various boards and 
commissions, staff, and civic groups; assisting with planning studies that support efforts to 
review, update, and implement the county’s land use plan.  Work also involves communicating 
with the general public and development community to answer development related questions.  
Reports to the Planning Director or their designee. 
 
 
 SPECIFIC DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS 
 
Coordinates the Development Review Process, including reviewing development proposals to 
ensure compliance with various codes, ordinances, and adopted plans; meeting with 
governmental agencies and the development community as required; scheduling and 
administering the Technical Review Committee submittal and meeting process. 
 
Prepares case analyses and makes recommendations to the Planning Board for development 
plans, subdivisions, and zoning map amendments; reviews and prepares text amendments to 
the county’s unified development ordinance.   
 
Under supervision, assists or leads special projects or planning efforts as needed; coordinates 
county planning activities with affected municipal, state, federal and private agencies. 
 
Reviews applications for building permits and site plans from developers and the general public 
to ensure compliance with county ordinances and adopted plans; distributes copies of 
development proposals to various governmental agencies for review and comment. 
 
Administers FEMA regulations including verifying flood certifications, identifying flood zones and 
interpreting flood damage prevention codes.  Responsible for maintenance of the CRS program 
and monitors changes in FEMA regulations. 
 
Answers zoning and subdivision questions making interpretations concerning development 
regulations for the public, development community, or other organizations. 
 
Familiarity with ArcMap or similar GIS software packages; ability to understand and interpret 
spatial data. 
 
 
ADDITIONAL JOB FUNCTIONS 
 
Performs duties as assigned by the County Manager or his designees during a State of 
Emergency or other disaster. 
 

155



 PLANNER II 
 

 
(c) MAXIMUS, 2003 2 

Performs other related work as required. 
 
 
 MINIMUM TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE 
 
Bachelors degree in planning or related field, two to three years experience in rural or regional 
planning at the local government level, and Certified Zoning Official (CZO) or Certified 
Floodplain Manager (CFM) certification; or any equivalent combination of training and 
experience which provides the required skills, knowledge and abilities.  Coastal planning 
experience desired. 
 
 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS OR STANDARDS REQUIRED 
 TO PERFORM ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS 
 
Physical Requirements: Must be physically able to operate a variety of office equipment and 
vehicles. Must be able to exert up to 50 pounds of force occasionally, and/or up to 10 pounds of 
force frequently, and/or a negligible amount of force constantly to move objects.  Physical 
demand requirements are for those for Medium Work.   
 
Data Conception: Requires the ability to compare and/or judge the readily observable, 
functional, structural or compositional characteristics (whether similar or divergent from obvious 
standards) of data, people or things. 
 
Interpersonal Communication: Requires the ability of speaking and/or signaling people to 
convey or exchange information. Includes giving instructions, assignments or directions to 
subordinates or assistants.  
 
Language Ability: Requires the ability to read a variety of reports, correspondence, real 
property appraisals and assessments, maps, deeds, surveys, permits, etc. Requires the ability to 
prepare correspondence, reports, permits, forms, maps, etc., using prescribed formats and 
conforming to all rules of punctuation, grammar, diction, and style. Requires the ability to speak 
before groups of people with poise, voice control and confidence.  
 
Intelligence: Requires the ability to apply principles of logical or scientific thinking to define 
problems, collect data, establish facts, and draw valid conclusions; to interpret a variety of 
technical instructions in mathematical or diagrammatic form; and to deal with several abstract 
and concrete variables. 
 
Verbal Aptitude: Requires the ability to record and deliver information, to explain procedures, to 
follow oral and written instructions. Must be able to communicate effectively and efficiently in a 
variety of technical or professional languages, including engineering, legal and mapping 
terminology. 
 
Numerical Aptitude: Requires the ability to utilize mathematical formulas; to add and subtract; 
multiply and divide; utilize decimals and percentages; understand and apply the theories of 
algebra, geometry, and descriptive statistics. 
 
Form/Spatial Aptitude: Requires the ability to inspect items for proper length, width and shape. 
 
Motor Coordination: Requires the ability to coordinate hands and eyes rapidly and accurately in 
using office equipment. 

156



 PLANNER II 
 

 
(c) MAXIMUS, 2003 3 

 
Manual Dexterity: Requires the ability to handle a variety of items such as office equipment. 
Must have minimal levels of eye/hand/foot coordination. 
 
Color Discrimination: Requires the ability to differentiate between colors and shades of color. 
 
Interpersonal Temperament: Requires the ability to deal with people beyond giving and 
receiving instructions. Must be adaptable to performing under stress and when confronted with 
persons acting under stress. 
 
Physical Communication: Requires the ability to talk and hear: (Talking: expressing or 
exchanging ideas by means of spoken words. Hearing: perceiving nature of sounds by ear.)  
Must be able to communicate via a telephone. 
 
 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 
 
Thorough knowledge of the principles, practices and objectives of rural, urban, and regional 
planning. 
 
Considerable knowledge of governmental programs, laws, and services pertinent to the planning 
process. 
 
Considerable knowledge of the current literature, trends and development in the field of rural and 
regional planning. 
 
General knowledge of the environmental and socio-economic implications of the planning 
process 
 
General knowledge of economics, sociology, public administration and quantitative methods and 
research techniques as related to planning. 
 
General knowledge of the principles of public planning and citizen participation. 
 
Ability to initiate and execute assignments under minimal supervision. 
 
Ability to use computer-aided mapping, drafting, word processing, spreadsheet and file 
maintenance programs. 
 
Ability to read and interpret maps, surveys, and engineering drawings and plans.  
 
Ability to review subdivision plans, site development plans and related drawings for compliance 
to applicable local regulations and ordinances. 
 
Ability to interpret and administer design and performance standards as related to development 
plan review, zoning administration, and other planning issues. 
 
Ability to recommend alternative solutions for development or other planning issues according to 
provisions of the Unified Development Ordinance, Land Use Plan, or other policy directives. 
 
Ability to write clearly; to organize and analyze information and perform planning research 
 

157



 PLANNER II 
 

 
(c) MAXIMUS, 2003 4 

Ability to exercise considerable tact and courtesy in frequent contacts with county, municipal, 
state and federal officials, and the general public.  
 
Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships as necessitated by work 
assignments. 

158



Filename: Planner II Job Description.doc 
Directory: C:\DOCUME~1\gkeene\LOCALS~1\Temp 
Template: C:\Documents and 

Settings\gkeene\Application 
Data\Microsoft\Templates\Normal.dot 

Title:  
Subject:  
Author: user 
Keywords:  
Comments:  
Creation Date: 2/6/2009 3:57:00 PM 
Change Number: 2 
Last Saved On: 2/6/2009 3:57:00 PM 
Last Saved By: Sandra Hill 
Total Editing Time: 1 Minute 
Last Printed On: 2/11/2009 3:52:00 PM 
As of Last Complete Printing 
 Number of Pages: 4 
 Number of Words: 1,194 (approx.) 
 Number of Characters: 6,807 (approx.) 

 

159



 CURRITUCK COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 JOB TITLE: SENIOR PLANNER 
 PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
 
 GENERAL STATEMENT OF JOB 
 
Under limited supervision, performs technical, administrative and professional work in directing, 
assisting and coordinating the activities of the county planning department to ensure the orderly 
growth and efficient administration of county resources.  Work involves preparation of and 
ensuring compliance with land use ordinances such as those pertaining to subdivisions and 
zoning; participating in planning studies that support efforts to review, update, and implement the 
county’s land use plan; performing various data collection, evaluation of existing conditions and 
trends, and policy analysis that support long range planning; assisting in the formulation, 
installation, modification and improvement of master and subsidiary plans for the county's 
physical, economical, and social development; preparing reports for presentation to various 
boards and commissions, staff, and civic groups; writing and filing grant applications and 
overseeing the implementation of grants.  This position works both in a team environment and 
independently and requires close coordination with the director, county departments, other 
planning agencies, the development community, and general public.  Reports to the Planning 
Director. 
 
 
 SPECIFIC DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS 
 
Serves as a liaison to the County Manager, County Board of Commissioners, Planning Board, 
and other County officials; provides assistance to other county departments and public agencies 
involved in long-range planning. 
 
Manages or leads special projects or planning efforts as needed; supervises employees as 
assigned; coordinates county planning activities with affected municipal, state, federal and 
private agencies. 
 
Administers and prepares case analyses for zoning map amendments; reviews and prepares text 
amendments to the county’s unified development ordinance. 
 
Reviews and approves major and minor development plans and permit applications of 
developers and property owners to ensure compliance with various codes, ordinances, and 
adopted plans; reviews subdivisions and makes recommendations to the Planning Board. 
 
Prepares and reviews contracts and agreements; drafts recommendations; prepares and 
presents various studies and reports. 
 
Answers zoning and subdivision questions making interpretations concerning development 
regulations for the public or other organizations. 
 
Writes grant applications and oversees implementation; recommends adjustments to applicable 
codes. 
 
Familiarity with ArcMap or similar GIS software packages; ability to understand and interpret 
spatial data. 
 
 

160



 SENIOR PLANNER 
 

 
(c) MAXIMUS, 2003 2 

 
ADDITIONAL JOB FUNCTIONS 
 
Performs duties as assigned by the County Manager or his designees during a State of 
Emergency or other disaster. 
 
Performs other related work as required. 
 
 
 MINIMUM TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE 
 
Bachelors degree in planning or related field, three to five years experience in rural or regional 
planning at the local government level, and Certified Zoning Official (CZO) or Certified 
Floodplain Manager (CFM) certification; or any equivalent combination of training and 
experience which provides the required skills, knowledge and abilities.  Masters Degree, AICP 
certification, and coastal planning experience desired. 
 
 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS OR STANDARDS REQUIRED 
 TO PERFORM ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS 
 
Physical Requirements: Must be physically able to operate a variety of office equipment and 
vehicles. Must be able to exert up to 50 pounds of force occasionally, and/or up to 10 pounds of 
force frequently, and/or a negligible amount of force constantly to move objects.  Physical 
demand requirements are for those for Medium Work.   
 
Data Conception: Requires the ability to compare and/or judge the readily observable, 
functional, structural or compositional characteristics (whether similar or divergent from obvious 
standards) of data, people or things. 
 
Interpersonal Communication: Requires the ability of speaking and/or signaling people to 
convey or exchange information. Includes giving instructions, assignments or directions to 
subordinates or assistants.  
 
Language Ability: Requires the ability to read a variety of reports, correspondence, real 
property appraisals and assessments, maps, deeds, surveys, permits, etc. Requires the ability to 
prepare correspondence, reports, permits, forms, maps, etc., using prescribed formats and 
conforming to all rules of punctuation, grammar, diction, and style. Requires the ability to speak 
before groups of people with poise, voice control and confidence.  
 
Intelligence: Requires the ability to apply principles of logical or scientific thinking to define 
problems, collect data, establish facts, and draw valid conclusions; to interpret a variety of 
technical instructions in mathematical or diagrammatic form; and to deal with several abstract 
and concrete variables. 
 
Verbal Aptitude: Requires the ability to record and deliver information, to explain procedures, to 
follow oral and written instructions. Must be able to communicate effectively and efficiently in a 
variety of technical or professional languages, including engineering, legal and mapping 
terminology. 
 
Numerical Aptitude: Requires the ability to utilize mathematical formulas; to add and subtract; 
multiply and divide; utilize decimals and percentages; understand and apply the theories of 

161



 SENIOR PLANNER 
 

 
(c) MAXIMUS, 2003 3 

algebra, geometry, trigonometry, descriptive statistics, integral calculus, differential calculus and 
statistical inference. 
 
Form/Spatial Aptitude: Requires the ability to inspect items for proper length, width and shape. 
 
Motor Coordination: Requires the ability to coordinate hands and eyes rapidly and accurately in 
using office equipment. 
 
Manual Dexterity: Requires the ability to handle a variety of items such as office equipment. 
Must have minimal levels of eye/hand/foot coordination. 
 
Color Discrimination: Requires the ability to differentiate between colors and shades of color. 
 
Interpersonal Temperament: Requires the ability to deal with people beyond giving and 
receiving instructions. Must be adaptable to performing under stress and when confronted with 
persons acting under stress. 
 
Physical Communication: Requires the ability to talk and hear: (Talking: expressing or 
exchanging ideas by means of spoken words. Hearing: perceiving nature of sounds by ear.)  
Must be able to communicate via a telephone. 
 
 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 
 
Thorough knowledge of the principles, practices and objectives of urban, rural, and regional 
planning. 
 
Thorough knowledge of economics, sociology, public administration and quantitative methods 
and research techniques as related to planning. 
 
Considerable knowledge of the environmental and socio-economic implications of the planning 
process. 
 
Considerable knowledge of governmental programs, laws, grants and services pertinent to the 
planning process. 
 
Considerable knowledge of the current literature, trends and development in the field of rural and 
regional planning. 
 
Thorough knowledge of the principles of public planning and citizen participation. 
 
Ability to initiate and execute assignments with minimal supervision. 
 
Ability to manage well-balanced and inclusive planning projects. 
 
Considerable experience in project management, including ability to work well in a team-focused 
environment and assume a leadership position. 
 
Ability to plan, assign and direct the activities of a professional, technical and clerical staff. 
 
Skills in the collection, analysis and presentation of technical data and planning 
recommendations. 

162



 SENIOR PLANNER 
 

 
(c) MAXIMUS, 2003 4 

 
Ability to use computer-aided mapping, drafting, word processing, spreadsheet and file 
maintenance programs. 
 
Ability to read and interpret maps, surveys, and engineering drawings and plans.  
 
Ability to review subdivision plans, site development plans and related drawings for compliance 
to applicable local regulations and ordinances. 
 
Working knowledge of the principles and practices of engineering and physical design as 
generally related to planning and development. 
 
Ability to interpret and administer design and performance standards as related to development 
plan review, zoning administration, and other planning issues. 
 
Ability to recommend alternative solutions for development or other planning issues according to 
provisions of the Unified Development Ordinance, Land Use Plan, or other policy directives. 
 
Ability to write clearly; to organize and analyze information and perform planning research 
 
Ability to explain planning theory, policy and practices to lay people individually or in groups.  
 
Ability to exercise considerable tact and courtesy in frequent contacts with county, municipal, 
state and federal officials, and the general public.  
 
Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships as necessitated by work 
assignments. 
 

163



Filename: Senior Planner Job Description.doc 
Directory: C:\DOCUME~1\gkeene\LOCALS~1\Temp 
Template: C:\Documents and 

Settings\gkeene\Application 
Data\Microsoft\Templates\Normal.dot 

Title:  
Subject:  
Author: user 
Keywords:  
Comments:  
Creation Date: 2/6/2009 3:56:00 PM 
Change Number: 3 
Last Saved On: 2/11/2009 3:52:00 PM 
Last Saved By:   
Total Editing Time: 1 Minute 
Last Printed On: 2/11/2009 3:52:00 PM 
As of Last Complete Printing 
 Number of Pages: 4 
 Number of Words: 1,331 (approx.) 
 Number of Characters: 7,589 (approx.) 

 

164



Number TDA2009009

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15442-526200 Promotional efforts 300,000$                   
15320-415000 Occupancy Tax 300,000$                 

300,000$                   300,000$                 

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners sitting as the Tourism Development 
Authority, at a meeting on the  16th day of February 2009 , passed the following 
amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - Increased by $250,000.

Tourism Promotion (15442) - To increase budgeted line items for immediate funds to 
promote the upcoming summer season. 

165



Number TDA2009010

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15447-590000 Capital Outlay 167,000$                   
15320-415000 Occupancy Tax 167,000$                 

167,000$                   167,000$                 

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners sitting as the Tourism Development 
Authority, at a meeting on the  16th day of February 2009 , passed the following 
amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - Increased by $167,000.

Tourism Related Expenditures (15447) - To increase appropriations for increase in 
construction cost of Moyock Welcome Center after bids, security system, changes to 
signage, and picnic and vending pavilions.

166



167



168



169



170



171



b

ti
w
ti
0

d
b b

a r G
y

H r
u
V

y
fA

u

T
i F i

N

nd
n o

o b o r oo
G

o

y 0

rco
C Y b F C C

o o o o
C1 H

xo
IF4I r

w

v
y eK

Q h4 O fD C Q fD C D

n b9
n

F

0 N
eY

a
n

7r

CD M y N

a a o
y

R
o

o o po
i C

n y

d A
y

A
N

fD Vii Vii
fD y

O

C
A

d b9 C
A

C
A

C
fy

6R
r

b9
Cn

b9
V

p O p p O O W O
Uq O G p O w O

ti

n N n A A
1 Q N H N

O

b9

0
O
O

0

9 69 b9 b9 b9 b9 b4 69 b9

N
p
C cn

v O
w

v
v
O O

w
v

P
v

c o o g o o o o o
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0
c o o o o o o o o

o

Fr

1F

y
VM

172


	Agenda
	Consideration
	lease agreement
	airport map

	Consideration of Resolution
	legislative 

	Appointment of Commissioner to Northeastern Workforce Investment Consortium
	Appt to Workforce Investment Consortium

	Appointments 
	Recreation Advisory Board

	Ordinance to authorize amending code of ordinances for billing of annual inspection of provisional septic tanks
	septic tank inspections

	Letter requesting amendment to testing for Volatile Organic Compounds
	water testing legislation

	Letter of Support opposing bailout legislation for the OTCs
	otc letter

	Approval of February 2, 2009, Minutes
	February 2 Minutes

	Approval of Sheriff's Office Records Retention and Disposition Schedule
	Sheriff Records Retention

	Budget Amendments
	Budget Amendments

	Crowder Change Order #2 - Mainland Water Construction
	CO2_Crowder

	Change order #1 - McKenzie Construction Co., Moyock Library
	McKenzie CO 1_Moyock Library

	Planning Department Job Descriptions
	Planner I Job Description
	Planner II Job Description
	Senior Planner Job Description

	Budget Amendment
	Budget Amendment
	Tourism Promotion Request

	Discussion of Additional Tourism Funding
	Additional Tourism Funding


